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)
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)




)
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)

DECISION

Paige A. Heck is subject to discipline because she was convicted of health care fraud, wire fraud and money laundering, and was convicted of conspiracy to commit these offenses.
Procedure


On June 10, 2005, the State Board of Nursing (“the Board”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Heck.  Heck was served with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing
 and has filed no response.  On July 21, 2005, the Board filed a motion for summary determination.  By order dated September 1, 2005, we denied the motion.  On October 5, 2005, the Board filed a motion for reconsideration with additional evidence.

Pursuant to § 536.073.3,
 our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3) provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the Board establishes facts that (a) Heck does not dispute and (b) entitle the Board to a favorable decision.


We gave Heck until October 21, 2005, to respond to the motion, but she did not.  Therefore, the following facts are undisputed.
Findings of Fact

1. Heck was licensed as a registered professional nurse.  Her license was current and active until April 30, 2001, when she placed her license on inactive status.
2. On November 24, 2003, in the United States District Court for the District of Kansas, Heck was found guilty of one count of conspiracy to commit health care fraud, wire fraud and money laundering; 7 counts of healthcare fraud; 2 counts of wire fraud; and 12 counts of money laundering.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear complaints from licensing boards seeking to discipline professional licensees.
  The Board has the burden of proving that Heck has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.
  The Board argues that there is cause for discipline under 
§ 335.066, which states: 

2.  The board may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate of registration or authority, permit or license required by sections 335.011 to 335.096 or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate of registration or authority, permit or license for any one or any combination of the following causes:

*   *   *


(2) The person has been finally adjudicated and found guilty, or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution pursuant to the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any profession licensed or regulated pursuant to sections 335.011 to 335.096, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed[.]

Heck was found guilty of conspiracy to commit health care fraud, wire fraud and money laundering as set forth in the following:
18 U.S.C. § 371 – Conspiracy:

If two or more persons conspire either to commit any offense against the United States, or to defraud the United States, or any agency thereof in any manner or for any purpose, and one or more of such persons do any act to effect the object of the conspiracy, each shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.

If, however, the offense, the commission of which is the object of the conspiracy, is a misdemeanor only, the punishment for such conspiracy shall not exceed the maximum punishment provided for such misdemeanor.

18 U.S.C. § 1347 – Health care fraud:
Whoever knowingly and willfully executes, or attempts to execute, a scheme or artifice –

(1) to defraud any health care benefit program; or
(2) to obtain, by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, any of the money or property owned by, or under the custody or control of, any health care benefit program,

in connection with the delivery of or payment for health care benefits, items, or services, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 10 years, or both.  If the violation results in serious bodily injury (as defined in section 1365 of this title), such person shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both; and if the violation results in death, such 
person shall be fined under this title, or imprisoned for any term of years or for life, or both.

18 U.S.C. § 1343 – Fraud by wire, radio, or television:

Whoever, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, transmits or causes to be transmitted by means of wire, radio, or television communication in interstate or foreign commerce, any writings, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.  If the violation affects a financial institution, such person shall be fined not more than $1,000,000 or imprisoned not more than 30 years, or both.
18 U.S.C. § 1957 – Engaging in monetary transactions in property derived from specified unlawful activity:
(a) Whoever, in any of the circumstances set forth in subsection (d), knowingly engages or attempts to engage in a monetary transaction in criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000 and is derived from specified unlawful activity, shall be punished as provided in subsection (b).
(b)(1) Except as provided in paragraph (2), the punishment for an offense under this section is a fine under title 18, United States Code, or imprisonment for not more than ten years or both.
(2) The court may impose an alternate fine to that imposable under paragraph (1) of not more than twice the amount of the criminally derived property involved in the transaction.
(c) In a prosecution for an offense under this section, the Government is not required to prove the defendant knew that the offense from which the criminally derived property was derived was specified unlawful activity.
(d) The circumstances referred to in subsection (a) are –
(1) that the offense under this section takes place in the United States or in the special maritime and territorial jurisdiction of the United States; or
(2) that the offense under this section takes place outside the United States and such special jurisdiction, but the defendant is a United States person (as defined in section 3077 of this title, but excluding the class described in paragraph (2)(D) of such section).
(e) Violations of this section may be investigated by such components of the Department of Justice as the Attorney General may direct, and by such components of the Department of Treasury as the Secretary of the Treasury may direct, as appropriate and, with respect to offenses over which the United States Postal Service has jurisdiction, by the Postal Service.  Such authority of the Secretary of the Treasury and the Postal Service shall be exercised in accordance with an agreement which shall be entered into by the Secretary of the Treasury, the Postal Service, and the Attorney General.
(f) As used in this section –
(1) the term “monetary transaction” means the deposit, withdrawal, transfer, or exchange, in or affecting interstate or foreign commerce, of funds or a monetary instrument (as defined in section 1956(c)(5) of this title) by, through, or to a financial institution (as defined in section 1956 of this title), including any transaction that would be a financial transaction under section 1956(c)(4)(B) of this title, but such term does not include any transaction necessary to preserve a person’s right to representation as guaranteed by the sixth amendment to the Constitution;

(2) the term “criminally derived property” means any property constituting, or derived from, proceeds obtained from a criminal offense; and

(3) the term “specified unlawful activity” has the meaning given that term in section 1956 of this title.


Heck was found guilty of health care fraud, wire fraud and money laundering as set forth above.  An essential element is one that must be proven for a conviction in every case.
  Fraud is an intentional perversion of truth to induce another, in reliance on it, to part with some valuable thing belonging to him.
  It necessarily includes dishonesty, which is a lack of integrity or a disposition to defraud or deceive.
  Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty 
between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”[
]

We find that health care fraud, wire fraud and money laundering are offenses essential elements of which are fraud and dishonesty and offenses involving moral turpitude.  We find that conspiracy to commit these offenses is an offense an essential element of which is dishonesty and one involving moral turpitude.  We find that all of the offenses are reasonably related to the qualifications of a professional nurse in that a professional nurse must be of good moral character.
  Although conviction for a criminal offense does not always show lack of good moral character, the seriousness and extent of these offenses warrants such a finding.  We find cause for discipline under § 335.066.2(2).

Summary


Heck is subject to discipline under § 335.066.2(2).  We cancel the hearing.

SO ORDERED on December 6, 2005.



________________________________



JOHN J. KOPP



Commissioner

	�The certified mail “green” card, signed by Heck, was filed on June 20, 2005.


	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2000 Revised Statutes of Missouri.


	�Section 621.045.  


	�Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


	�State ex rel. Atkins v. Missouri Bd. of Accountancy, 351 S.W.2d 483, 485 (Mo. App., K.C.D. 1961).


	�State ex rel. Williams v. Purl, 128 S.W. 196, 201 (Mo. 1910).  


	�MERRIAM-WEBSTER’S COLLEGIATE DICTIONARY 333 (10th ed. 1993).


	�In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).


	�Section 335.046.1.
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